
 
 

CHARITABLE TRUST COMMITTEE 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Wednesday 22nd March 2023 
 

Time 6.00pm 
 

Venue Crompton Suite, Civic Centre, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul Entwistle or 
Constitutional Services team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this agenda are available from Constitutional 
Services: telephone 0161 770 5151, or via email at 
constitutional.services@olddham.gov.uk    
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the contact officer by 12 noon on Friday, 17th March 
2023. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may record 
/ film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the press 
are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends a meeting 
and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional Services Officer 
who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 
Please also note the Public attendance Protocol on the Council’s Website 
 
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE CHARITABLE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 Councillors Birch, Byrne, Hamblett, Ali and Munroe 

 
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:constitutional.services@olddham.gov.uk
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings


 
 

Item No 

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

3   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 2) 

 The Minutes of the Charitable Trust Committee held on 28th September 2023 are 
attached for approval. 

6   439 Middleton Road, Chadderton (Pages 3 - 8) 

 



 

 

CHARITABLE TRUST COMMITTEE 
28/09/2022 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillors Birch, Byrne, Hamblett and Munroe 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
Peter Thompson – Constitutional Services 

1   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR   

Resolved that Councillor Byrne be appointed Chair of the 
Committee for the 2022/23 Municipal Year. 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ali. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business for the Committee to 
consider. 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions for this meeting of the 
Committee to consider. 

6   MINUTES   

Resolved that the Minutes of the meeting of the Charitable Trust 
Committee, held 23rd March 2022, be approved as a correct 
record. 

7   CLAYTON PLAYING FIELDS TRUST - ANNUAL REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022  

 

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Finance 
that recommended approval of the accounts of the Clayton 
Playing Fields Trust (attached at Appendix A).   

 
The Charity Commission require all charities to hold an annual 
general meeting and approve the latest year’s financial 
statement at the meeting.  It is also a requirement than an 
annual return is sent to the Charity Commission with, amongst 
other things, the main financial details.  The presentation of this 
report and approval of its recommendations would enable the 
Trustees to discharge this requirement.  
 
Resolved: 
That the Committee approves the Clayton Playing Fields Trust 
accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022. 
 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 6.10pm  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

             
Charitable Trust Committee  

  
 
Subject: 439 Middleton Road, Chadderton, OL9 9JX 

(L00537) 
 
Charities Number: Not registered. 

  
Report Author: Rosalyn Smith, Estate Team Leader 
  
Date: 13 March 2023 

 

 
 
Reason for the decision: 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek the Charity Commission’s authority to sell 439 Middleton 
Road to remove a liability and generate a capital receipt for the Charity (in respect of the 
value of the long leasehold interest held by the Charity) and for the Council (in respect of 
the freehold reversion).  The property is currently vacant, in a very poor state of repair, being 
targeted by vandals and needs substantial investment before it could be occupied.   
 
Background: 
 
439 Middleton Road comprises the freehold interest in a significant three-storey semi-
detached building with associated land. The property is of brick construction with part hipped 
slate roof and part flat roof. The rear elevation has a rendered finish. The building is sub-
divided into several smaller rooms on each floor accessed from a central staircase.  The 
property has an internal area of 270m2 and sits within a site area of 345m2. 
 
The property is situated opposite Chadderton Town Hall in a mixed use area approximately 
1.7 miles west of Oldham town centre.  A plan showing the location of the asset is attached 
at Appendix 1 and photographs of the property are in Appendix 2. 
 
In 1946 Chadderton Urban District acquired the long underlease in 439 Middleton Road 
(for a term of 927 years), paid for with money from Archie Brown, a local business owner, 
specifically for “the use of old age pensioners and people of a like age as a meeting place 
for reading and conversational purposes.” Consequently, this property is now considered 
to be a charitable gift to the Council afforded the status of charity asset. 
 
In December 1968 the Council acquired the freehold interest in 439 Middleton Road, and 
the adjoining property, 437.  It is somewhat unclear as to how that came about but at the 
time of acquisition the Council as charity trustee should have registered the underlease at 
the same time as the Council registered its freehold in its capacity of landowner, but there 
is no mention of the underlease on the freehold title.  The Council will therefore now seek 
to register the underlease at HMLR with the appropriate charity restriction.   
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Most recently, part of the property has been let as a minicab office, but since their lease 
ended in April 2019 the whole property has been vacant.  Consequently it is not generating 
income and there are annual costs of approximately £7,400 in holding the property, which 
can be roughly broken down as:- 
             £ 

Electricity 300.00  

Water Services 130.00  

Pest Control Charges 500.00  

Rates 2,200.00  

Repairs 3,100.00 

Security 1,170.00 

  

 7,400.00 

 
The Council have no requirement for the property and it is in a very poor condition 
throughout.  It could not be reoccupied without very significant investment estimated at 
£500,000+.  It appears to have may have structural issues, there is Japanese Knotweed in 
the rear yard, it is full of rubbish and has been subject to recent vandalism and arson attacks.  
It is at high risk of further serious damage and funding is not available to effect repairs and 
deal with any health and safety implications.  
 
Consequently, it is proposed that the property is sold at the earliest opportunity, to halt its 
decline and ensure it can be brought back into useful occupation.  The simplest way to deal 
with this is through a sale by auction which will fully expose the property to the market, 
enable the best price to be achieve and ensure the matter completes in a timely manner, 
generally 28 days after the auction.  A sale by private treaty may give more control over who 
buys the property and its future use, but timescales can drift and the priority here needs to 
be selling the property as quickly as possible so the charity is not left which very significant 
repair bills.   
 
The condition of the property will seriously impact on the sale price, but it is still anticipated 
that the property will achieve a capital receipt in the region of £100,000.  These funds, less 
sale expenses, will then be put towards furthering the original aims of the property purchase, 
namely the wellbeing of local old age pensioners.  Legal Services are to advise on the 
implications in terms of the Charities Act and the measures which are required to enable this 
Charity asset to be disposed of in this manner. 
 
The Council owns a freehold reversionary interest in the adjoining semi, 437 Middleton Road 
and is seeking authority to sell that property at the same auction to maximise   the sale price 
in both cases.    
 
 
Options: 
 
Option 1 – Dispose of the asset via auction at the earliest opportunity. This will provide 
a capital receipt and remove the liability of costly repairs and associated void costs in a 
timely manner, which is considered important bearing in mind the recent targeted attacks on 
the property.  
 

Page 4



 

Option 2 – To retain the property. This will require significant costs to repair and maintain 
the property whilst incurring associated void costs. To generate any income from the 
property will require significant capital investment to refurbish the property into a habitable 
condition, which would not be in the Charity’s best interest.    
 
Recommendation: 
 
Option 1 is recommended for approval based on the terms highlighted above. 
 

 
Financial Comments: 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the disposal of this vacant property. 
 
The Council does not hold any specific budget for this asset but currently incur costs of 
approx. £7.4k per year against the wider Corporate Landlord budgets and the sale of the 
property will reduce the pressure on these budgets. 
 
However, the amounts spent on this asset are expected to increase as security attendance 
at the property is increasing and the sale will mitigate against further revenue pressures 
and remove the need for the Council to invest capital resources, estimated at £500k, to 
bring the asset back into use. 
 

Jamie Kelly 
 
Capital Implications 
 
The property was last valued in November 2019 as part of the five-year rolling valuation 
programme.  As such it is held on Land and Buildings at a nominal £1 as at 28.02.2023. 
Any capital receipt (assuming the sale can proceed) realised from the sale will be 
accounted for as a profit on disposal and recorded in the financial statements accordingly.  
Since this is a Trust Asset there will be a requirement to keep any proceeds until such time 
it is permitted to be utilised for its intended purpose held under the conditions of the Trust. 
 

Paula Buckley (Senior Accountant) 
 
 
 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 - Location Plan 
Appendix 2 - Photographs 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 5



 

 
Appendix 1 – Location Plan 

       (Not to scale) 

Page 6



 

Appendix 2 – Photograph of premises 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 7



 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 439 Middleton Road, Chadderton

